
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

December 11, 2018 
M I N U T E S  

Present: Chubb Whitton, Jeanne Dietsch, Christine Dennler, Corinne 
Chronopoulos, James Kelly, Jerry Galus, Adam Hamilton, Nate Morison 
and Karen Hatcher     
Also Present: Peter Throop, Laura Norton, and Kristin Bixby, Office of 
Community Development. 
Chair Hamilton called the meeting to order at 12:00 Noon noting no 
need for introductions. 
 
Minutes: 
A motion was made/seconded (Galus/Whitton) to approve the Minutes 
of October 23, 2018 as written with all in favor.  
 
Chair Hamilton appointed Ms. Dennler to sit. He the reviewed the 
purpose of subcommittees, which was to help in taking the workload off 
the Committee. He noted many of the subcommittees have individuals 
with specific expertise and went on to say, “their job is to come back to 
us with recommendations that help move the meeting along without 
duplication of effort.” With that said he asked Mr. Throop to proceed 
with the Budget Update. 
 
Budget Update: 
Mr. Throop reviewed the two sections of the budget (EDA Special 
Article (balance of $60,130.00 with $9,175.00 expended year to date) 
and Operating Accounts (balance of 5,000 with 624.43 expended year to 
date). He told the Members outside services and expenses such as the 
printing of their 4-color promotional brochure, its distribution, rack and 
jobber fees at the Interstate 93 truck stop as well as website hosting and 
the Downtown Walking App comes out of the operations budget. “Other 
special services (such as consultants, social media applications, 
marketing and branding) come out of the monies from the town warrant. 
The Welcome Team’s expenses were $393.44 to date. Ms.  
 
 



EDA Meeting Minutes                             December 11, 2018 Page 2 of 8 

Chronopoulos questioned the $1,200 budget for the walking tour. “Was 
that amount approved?” she asked adding “I think we should take a look 
at this, no one is using it as far as I can tell, and I am not sure it is worth 
the investment.” 
 
Mr. Throop noted Tracy Messer had come before the Board about a year 
ago with a presentation and funding request to update the application. 
Chair Hamilton echoed her concern and asked Mr. Throop to reach to 
Mr. Messer for an update on its status. “It has been a year and the funds 
have not been used so far” he said.  
 
Mr. Throop concluded by noting the total amount of (current) 
encumbrances was $5200.00 and the total forecast was $14,375.00 
leaving a balance of $45,755.00 at the end of the year to carry forward. 
 
Update: EDA Marketing Committee: 
Proposed Drum Production Studio (Drum) Contract Extension for 2019: 
Mr. Throop reviewed the specifics of the extension for the contract for 
Drum.  

Drum’s proposal to update the EDA Website: Mr. Throop reviewed the 
recommendations provided by Drum to align the EDA web site 
(Peterboroughworks.com) with the social media management. This 
included an aesthetic, redesigned landing page, embedded welcome 
videos, adding Instagram to the social links and setup and integration of 
Google Analytics and Facebook Pixel.  

Update: Strategy Marketing and Branding: 

Narrative and Promotional Strategy: Mr. Throop began by telling the 
Members about an all Committee Chairman’s meeting that was recently 
held “where each Chairman was given the opportunity to talk about what 
their committees were doing.” He told them the Narrative had been 
presented to them for feedback and a few points (grammar, factual 
items) needed to be reviewed. He told the Members that task have been 
assigned to Ms. Bixby and Administrative Assistant Allison Kreutz. 
Concerned that the audience may have been unfamiliar with it, Chair 



EDA Meeting Minutes                             December 11, 2018 Page 3 of 8 

Hamilton asked, “did they understand the context of the narrative?” Mr. 
Throop replied, “most of the concerns were from the Town 
Administrator” adding “if it is going to be published he wants to make 
sure it is correct.” Ms. Hacker interjected “then what? What is the 
process in general?” Mr. Throop replied, “I believe its needs to becomes 
a living document, primarily enacted through the Marketing 
Committee.” Mr. Throop went on to say “we need to own it, Dawn 
(Wivell) is not going to continue to move it forward, we are. We have to 
make sure we all own it.” Ms. Hatcher asked if the document would be 
sanctioned by the EDA and/or the Board of Selectmen as an approved 
marketing piece.  Ms. Chronopoulos suggested the document be a tool 
for the board of Selectmen, the EDA, Department Heads and Hub and 
Spoke members. “And it should be available online with examples of 
how to use it” she said. Mr. Galus asked, “what do we use it for?” Mr. 
Throop replied, “I have not seen an action plan yet from Dawn, but I 
expect there will be a promotional strategy that emphasizes the 
importance of consistency as we talk about the town.” Mr. Galus then 
asked about accountability and asked if there were any criteria set up by 
the narrative. “Something to measure it by” he said.   

Chair Hamilton noted Ms. Wivell had been hired to craft a brand 
narrative to be used by the town and the EDA and to make 
recommendations to use a similar messaging. “Like Vermont and the 
Berkshires have done” he said. Ms. Dennler added “that has filtered 
down to the EDA approving the narrative in its concept at least and then 
having the Marketing Committee decide how to best disseminate the 
message.” Mr. Throop reminded the Members whatever the message, “it 
needs to fold into the Master Plan, it needs to be congruent in its overall 
theme.” Ms. Dennler concluded “it is like everyone using the same 
colors, the pictures can be different and customized for particular uses, 
but the colors are the same. Consistency will get us more bang for the 
buck.” 

Action Plan: Mr. Throop noted an Action Plan was pending.  



EDA Meeting Minutes                             December 11, 2018 Page 4 of 8 

A motion was made by Ms. Dennler to approve the Contract for Social 
Media management by Drum as described in the itemized quote 
provided in their membership packets.  

Additional discussion included the fact that Drum would be working 
with the Instagram, Facebook and Twitter platforms. Ms. Chronopoulos 
asked about the long-term plan for the use of social media. “Will we use 
Drum each year? Will this eventually become a (town) staff person 
responsibility?” she asked. “That is a good point” replied Ms. Dennler 
adding “and it is something to discuss but if we’re in for a penny or in 
for a pound, it will be Drum for this year.” A brief discussion about 
return on investment followed with Ms. Dennler noting “the seeds they 
sow now will be beneficial but only as long as we can water them. It is a 
commitment budget wise.” 

Mr. Throop gave a brief review of the budget balances he’d given 
earlier.  He reminded the members their vote was a recommendation to 
the Board of Selectmen and they were indeed tasked with how to 
prioritize their funds and get the best return on their investments. He 
noted the initial warrant article not only passed but the amount was 
increased as it was debated on the floor; but he warned “another warrant 
article may be hard to achieve in the coming years.” 

Mr. Galus asked about any additional expenses they may be looking and 
a brief discussion about convening a session for a strategic discussion on 
other expenditures and how best to use funds to further their goals 
followed.  

Mr. Kelly mentioned Greenerboro and before the Members engaged in a 
discussion on the matter.  Mr. Throop explained that his understanding 
was the Chamber of Commerce was forming a Greenerboro Committee 
and they may be reaching out to the town for some support. He 
concluded that he needed to have a discussion with Chamber Director 
Sean Ryan to explore what that support may be. 



EDA Meeting Minutes                             December 11, 2018 Page 5 of 8 

A motion was made/seconded (Dennler/Chronopoulos) to approve the 
Contract for Social Media management by Drum as described in the 
itemized quote provided in their membership packets, with all in favor.  

Mr. Throop moved on to Drum’s proposal for social media manager. 
“They had made some recommendations resulting in a proposal to get us 
up to speed and more in line with social media projects such as 
embedded videos and working with Instagram” he said. Mr. Throop 
went on to note the Marketing Committee had recommended 10 hours of 
work at $45.00/hour “to investigate what are the must dos and what 
would be nice to have.”  

A motion was made/seconded (Dennler/Whitton) to approve a maximum 
of $450.00 to develop social media channels highlighting the 
opportunities and amenities Peterborough has to offer young 
professionals with all in favor.  

Update: Eco-System Hub: 

Ms. Dietsch told the Members the Eco-System Hub and EDA had a joint 
meeting on November 26th and had established the organization and 
process (posting, agendas and minutes) of regular meetings (determined 
to be the fourth Monday of the month at 12:00 Noon).  

Ms. Dietsch briefly reviewed reports for the existing Spokes and told the 
Members “although it may seem repetitive in theory, the Marketing 
Committee and Eco-System Hub speak to different audiences.” She 
noted the Hub is managed by member of the Spokes and the EDA 
continues to address posting potential sources of incoming residents. She 
told the Members their next meeting was January 22, 2019 at 12:00 p.m.  

Ms. Chronopoulos noted her concern that they still had not received an 
Action Plan from Ms. Wivell noting “maybe we should give her a 
deadline.” Chair Hamilton replied, “I think the action plan was 
contingent on the narrative which got extended because of additional 
input.” 

 



EDA Meeting Minutes                             December 11, 2018 Page 6 of 8 

Update: Merchant’s Spoke - Wayfinding Project: 

Mr. Throop noted “this is a proposal to find a way to improve 
wayfinding and the consistency and coherency of the signage we have. 
We need a signage plan” he said adding “and a branded look.”  

The Members reviewed the proposal that states the main roads 
surrounding the town do not provide consistent or reliable direction and 
the goal is to provide residents and visitors alike with an easy 
navigational system directing people to the many interests in town. This 
is especially important with the major upcoming infrastructure 
improvement projects beginning in the spring of 2019. 

Chair Hamilton interjected “is there an ask here?” Mr. Throop replied, 
“yes, and that is who wants to participate in a workgroup to look at 
signage with the priorities being the Route 101/202 intersection and the 
Downtown.” Ms. Dennler asked, “so standardizing the current and 
ongoing signage?” “Yes” replied Mr. Throop. Ms. Dennler and Ms. 
Hatcher volunteered to participate in the workgroup. Chair Hamilton 
suggested they participate as residents so as not draw a dotted line to the 
EDA. “Thank you” he said adding “it sounds fantastic, keep us 
informed.” 

Strategic Plan Review: 

Ms. Dietsch began by suggesting that with the roll-out of the Hub & 
Spoke model, a set of benchmarks be created “so we can review the 
goals quarterly (or as we see fit) to make sure everything is on track.” 
She noted the commercial vacancy rate of 46% in 2015 was down to 
22% acknowledging and noting Mr. Whitton was largely responsible for 
that. 

Ms. Hatcher gave a brief update on the Welcome Team noting an 
interesting mix of younger people and more families coming to town. 
“Home visits and attendance at the Meet & Greets are up and we are 
seeing a nice variety of folks. It is quite good” she said. 



EDA Meeting Minutes                             December 11, 2018 Page 7 of 8 

Ms. Dietsch noted a quarterly report on the home visits and meet and 
greet events would be beneficial. From the audience Palagia Vincent 
interjected “it would be nice to know why they have moved here” with 
Ms. Hatcher replying the Welcome Team does not dig that deeply into 
the demographics of the new residents. Ms. Vincent also noted the 
construction of new residential units at Rivermead and suggested some 
sort of welcome reception for them. “Why wouldn’t they come to a meet 
and greet?” asked Mr. Whitton with Ms. Vincent replying “some will   
but many will not, especially when they first move in.” Ms. Hatcher 
noted new residents receive a welcome letter within 30 days of moving 
in with information on home visits and the meet and greet events. “How 
they respond is based on their interest and their privacy levels” she said. 
Mr. Throop noted there were 24 new units under construction with 
another 24 units planned but ground has not been broken.  

Ms. Dietsch went on to telecommunication goals and told the Members 
that with the dedicated work of Zach Williams (Broadband Liaison at 
Jeanne Shaheen’s office) “FCC Mobility Fund II (MF II) Challenge had 
been finished and submitted.” (The FCC has established eligible areas 
of the country that allow auction participants to bid for the opportunity 
to add wireless broadband service.  These maps indicate that most of 
New Hampshire currently has LTE capability, which presumes 
download speeds of 5MB and upload speeds of 2MB.  The areas that are 
currently defined as ineligible due to existing service can be challenged 
using a specific FCC-designed process). 

Ms. Dietsch noted “the submission was far higher than expected given 
the difficulty of the assignment. There was a lot of protest about it and 
now the FCC is questioning the veracity of various telecommunication 
submissions.” She told the members of a recent medical emergency in 
the state where 911 could not be reached. “There will be an 
investigation” she said adding “it is nice to have something positive 
come out of something we thought was going nowhere.” Ms. Dietsch 
also noted Senate Bill 170 (SB 170) introduced by State Sen. Jay Kahn 
allowing municipal governments to issue bonds for building broadband 



EDA Meeting Minutes                             December 11, 2018 Page 8 of 8 

infrastructure in areas not served by a commercial provider passed. 
“This allows towns to ban together to bond projects” she said.  

Ms. Dietsch closed by reiterating the four items and their continuing 
milestone that the EDA should be checking on. (Commercial occupancy, 
tourism, telecommunication goals and Greenerboro).  
 

Other Business: 

Mr. Whitton took a moment to acknowledge Bob Wilkins (CEO of 
SoClean USA, manufacturer of a CPAP sanitizing device) who opened a 
new corporate office at the Vose Farm Business Center in early 2018. 
“He is a large employer who has back-filled a lot of jobs lost over the 
years, and I think it is a great time to get him in front of the Board of 
Selectmen or the EDA (or both) for some type of a meet and greet.” The 
members agreed, and Mr. Whitton volunteered to coordinate that effort. 

Mr. Kelly reiterated his concern about information on Greenerboro with 
Mr. Throop noting he would be in touch with the Chamber as soon as 
possible. 

Next Meeting: January 16, 2019 at 12:00 Noon. 
  
The meeting adjourned at 1:10 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Laura Norton, 
Administrative Assistant 
 


